Minutes of the Workshop Meeting of February 6, 2023
Page 3

CITY OF BLAINE

ANOKA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

Monday, February 6, 2023
6:00PM
Cloverleaf Farm Room A
10801 Town Square Drive

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Sanders at 6:00PM.
ROLL CALL

PRESENT:  Mayor Tim Sanders (arrived at 6:07PM), Councilmembers Terra Fleming, Chris Massoglia, Tom Newland, Jess Robertson, and Lori Saroya.
ABSENT:  None. 

Quorum Present.

 

ALSO PRESENT:  City Manager Michelle Wolfe; City Planner Sheila Sellman; Safety Services Director/Police Chief Brian Podany; Finance Director Joe Huss; Deputy Finance Director Alison Bong; City Engineer Dan Schluender; City Attorney Tom Loonan; Communications Manager Ben Hayle; Deputy Public Works Director Nick Fleischhacker; and City Clerk Catherine Sorensen.
Other Business
City Attorney Loonan provided the Council with information on Council agenda item 10.3 and reviewed the findings for denial.
3.1
Northtown Discussion Part II.

City Planner Sellman stated this item is part of an ongoing discussion about the redevelopment of the Northtown Mall area. Staff reviewed results from the exercise at the recent retreat and commented on the proposed uses for each of the properties in and around the Northtown Mall. She noted staff would be moving forward with a traffic study then commented further on how the EDA lots could be renovated. 
City Manager Wolfe explained staff would be bringing the Council further information on how other regional malls were redeveloping.
Council thanked staff and consensus was to confirm direction for this project. Staff noted this item would come back to the Council on March 13.
3.2
Introduction to Special Assessments.

City Engineer Schluender stated in 2022, Council requested staff to bring forward a workshop item to discuss special assessments. At the winter retreat discussions were initiated on this topics and Council was provided with information and background on the use of special assessments within the framework of the City’s pavement management plan. During the workshop discussion, staff will review how the City’s Public Improvement Special Assessment Policy has been utilized on street reconstruction projects over the past 10+ years in the City. Staff reviewed the current funding method used by Blaine - a combination of special assessments and property taxes and introduced other potential funding sources available for these projects. Staff requested further direction from the Council on this item.
 
Councilmember Saroya asked why there was a 10% increase in 2019. Mr. Schluender reported the City was looking to leverage more money into the program which led to an increase in the assessments to the benefiting residents. He explained the City increased the payback period when this change was made. 

Councilmember Robertson recalled that a larger increase was proposed by staff and the Council approved only a 10% increase. She commented on how commercial/industrial businesses were impacted by roadway assessments. Mr. Schluender commented further on how staff provided the Council with numerous options to consider in 2019.
Councilmember Massoglia questioned which City properties were not assessed. Mr. Schluender stated City property, parks and any property supported by an enterprise fund was not assessed. Finance Director Huss reported EDA properties were also not assessed.
Ms. Wolfe commented on the City’s pavement management plan noting all street projects were reconstruction projects, which was much more expensive than mill and overlay projects. She reported the City was partaking in an expensive part of the journey at this time in order set itself up well for the future. She indicated the goal was to reconstruct all streets at this time noting future projects would then be mill and overlays. 

Councilmember Newland questioned how many more years the City would be completing street reconstruction projects. Mr. Schluender estimated the City had five to seven more years of reconstruction projects before the City could shift to mill and overlay projects. 

Councilmember Robertson asked how many miles of roadway the City was responsible for. Mr. Schluender explained the City had 290 miles of roadway then commented further on the options available to the City for future street assessments, which included a potential franchise fee.
Councilmember Robertson stated she does not support franchise fees then asked if any of these options would impact the City’s AAA bond rating. Mr. Huss reported the debt per capita was one matter that was reviewed by Standard & Poor’s and if the Council were to make a significant shift, this might impact the City’s AAA bond rating. 
Councilmember Massoglia requested further information regarding the pavement management levy. Mr. Huss explained the City currently issues debt for the street reconstruction projects and these bonds are repaid over 12 to 15 years. The sources of revenue for these bonds are from assessments and the debt levy. 
Councilmember Newland supported the Council further discussing how the City assesses churches and non-profits. He requested staff bring back information on how the City would be impacted if these properties were exempt from paying assessments. The Council supported this recommendation.

Mayor Sanders asked if the Council could set a cap on its assessments so that no future assessments was more than $5,000. Mr. Schluender reported the project costs would still have to be examined to ensure that the assessments were over the 20% threshold. Mr. Huss anticipated a cap would have implications on the uniform spreading of the assessment costs. 

Councilmember Saroya questioned who would be paying franchise fees. Mr. Schluender reported franchise fees would be paid by every property owner that pays a utility bill in the City. 
Councilmember Newland reported franchise fees were recently discussed by the Metro North Chamber who felt it was not a transparent form of the cost of government but rather was a hidden fee within a utility bill. He believed the cleanest and most transparent system was to have fees within property taxes. He commented further on how franchise fees would adversely impact commercial properties and businesses in Blaine. 

Councilmember Saroya thanked staff and Councilmember Newland for the information. She inquired if the City could further discuss putting a hardship program in place. She supported the City having a fund in place to assist residents facing a hardship who are unable to pay an assessment. Mr. Schluender stated he was uncertain what this type of program would look like and indicated this may jeopardize the fair and equal assessment to the parcels. City Attorney Loonan reported this would be a unique program that would have to be separate from the assessment program. 

Councilmember Robertson asked if there were other programs available to assist families facing a financial hardship, or veterans and seniors. Mr. Schluender stated he would investigate this further.

Councilmember Newland supported the Council looking at these options and what the financial implications would be.
Councilmember Massoglia suggested the Council further discuss making church owned properties exempt. Mr. Huss explained he could look further into this and would report back to the Council at a future meeting.

Councilmember Robertson indicated she may struggle with this because she did not want the City Council individually selecting who would be responsible for paying an assessment when she understood there were seniors struggling to pay assessments. 
Mr. Loonan commented further on what regulations had to be followed, per statute, for assessments noting all properties must be treated uniformly. 
Councilmember Newland asked when this item would be brought back to the Council. Ms. Wolfe anticipated this matter would come back to the Council in segments in the coming months. 
Council consensus was to not consider franchise fees currently and bring back further information on how other cities structure their hardship programs for discussion at a future workshop meeting.
Other Business 
Councilmember Saroya shared her intent to make a motion to rescind the approval of the 111 99th Avenue/Blaine Apartments project. 
Mr. Loonan discussed how the motion to rescind would have to be framed and reported a notice of this motion would have to be posted prior to the Council considering this motion at its next meeting. He reported if the developer has already spent money, based on the City’s approval of the request, the City cannot go back and rescind the motion. 
Ms. Wolfe indicated the developer has already submitted final plat to the City which was scheduled for the February 22 City Council meeting. 

Mr. Loonan stated he would investigate this matter further, but noted the City Council may be past the point to rescind approval. 

Mayor Sanders reported he has not been contacted by any residents with concerns about the project then explained the City was committed to addressing the traffic concerns for this neighborhood. He noted the Council would also be committed to working with the developer and the builder going forward. 

Councilmember Saroya shared concerns that traffic and other issues would not be addressed and indicated concerns of the neighbors were not being heard. She reported this was her Council Ward and noted a fatality had occurred in the past on 3rd Street and encouraged the Council to take this project seriously, including the need for a traffic study. She noted the Alexandra House did not support this project and shared concerns with the factual information surrounding this project and wanted the project brought back for further consideration. She stated she would rather have the City face a lawsuit now versus having another fatality in this neighborhood. 

Mr. Schluender explained he met with residents Kathy and Bob Sydejko and laid out the process that would move this project forward. He reported a consultant would be hired to complete a traffic study for the entire neighborhood and this study would be shared with the entire neighborhood. He stated he was aware of the concerns that have been voiced and noted the City was working to address these concerns.

Councilmember Saroya questioned why this study had not been completed prior to this project being approved. Mr. Schluender reported this neighborhood did not make comment, that he was aware of, to City staff that there were any traffic concerns until this item came forward. 

Councilmember Saroya understood it was unprecedented to move backwards but stated she was still in favor of bringing this project back to the Council for reconsideration and having another conversation with the new City Council.

Councilmember Newland stated he has had two conversations regarding this project and both seemed to be accepting of the project but had questions about what was happening with the traffic study. He reported nothing has moved forward with this project to date and noted the final plat still had to be considered. He was of the opinion this project could not be brought back because the developer had already acted with the final plat. 
The workshop was adjourned at 7:18PM.








Tim Sanders, Mayor

ATTEST:

Catherine Sorensen, CMC, City Clerk
Submitted by Minute Maker Secretarial 
